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Independent Auditors’ Report

To

The Members of

M/s. CMR Aluminum Private Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s. CMR Aluminium Private
Limited {"the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit (or loss) total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143
(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of
ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not




not include the financial statements and our auditors’' report thereon. The Company’s annual
report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other infarmation identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Company’s annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take
necessary actions, as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Management's Responsibility and Those Charged With Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial state




As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in {i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.




From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) Woe have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Standalone Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Cash Flow
Statement and Standalone Staternent of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses a unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements for the reasons stated therein.;

g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been
paid/provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

3) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone Financial
Statements.

b} The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

¢) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.




d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

f)

have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities “Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

» directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or

 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii)The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities

{(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that

the Company shall:

¢ directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} by or on behalf of the Funding Party or

» provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under subclause (d) (i) and {d} (ii) contain any materia! mis-statement.

The company has neither declared interim dividend declared and nor paid during the year
and until the date of this audit report and hence reporting under Section 123 of the Act is
not applicable.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from April 01, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for
record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

ForTAKS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:030474N

Ajay Aggarwal
Partner
Membership no. 543671
Place: Faridabad



Annexure A

To the Independent Auditors’' Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of
CMR Aluminium Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

Referred to in paragraph 1, under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our Report of even date)

(i} (a)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

B.

b)

d)

ii}

b)

details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Property, Plant and
Equipment so to cover all the assets in a phased manner, which in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its Property, Plant and Equipment.
In accordance with this program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for
verification during the year and were physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification as compared to the books of
accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the standalone financial statements are held in the name of the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment
{including Right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company
for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Iinventory has been physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable
intervals and discrepancies observed on such physical verification have been properly dealt with
in the books of account;

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets.
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company with no difference over 5% of total value
of statement.




iii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee
or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.

(a) A. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations

b)

d)

e)

v)

vi)

given to us, the Company has not granted any loans to subsidiaries.
B. No loans have been granted and hence this sub clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the loans given are,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, the repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been regular.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of
loans given.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no loan given falling due during the year, which has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the
same party.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as
specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has not provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Further, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in relation to loans given and investments made.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3{v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for
the products manufactured by it {and/ or services provided by it} We have broadly reviewed the
books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of excise and

Value added tax during the year.




b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax {‘GST’), Provident fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues have
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess
and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST, Provident
fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Value
added tax, Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited by the Company on
account of disputes except following:

'Demand of Rs 1.64 Crore under section 154 of Income tax Act 1961 for Income credited under
section 115 JB for MAT Credit is outstanding as on balance sheet date.

viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

ix)

b)

of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has outstanding term loan of INR
92.60 Crore and 2.95 Crore of cash credit limit and company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the term loans
were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds have been raised on short-term basis by
the Company. Accordingly, clause 3{ix}{d} of the Order is not applicabie.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined
under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3{ix){e) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in

BN




its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable.
x) {a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Hence, the
requirement to report on clause (x}{b} of the order is not applicable to the Company.

xi)} {a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

c) We rely on management representation that the company has not received whistle-blower
complaints and no such complaints reported to the auditor.

xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

b} We have considered internal audit report of the company in determining the nature, timing
and extent of our audit procedures.

xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
the Company.

xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.




c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){c} of the Order is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the
Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not
applicable.

xvii)The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act in
compliance with second proviso to sub-section {5) of Section 135 of the said Act. The company
has transferred such unspent account. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order
is not applicable for the year.

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, unspent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} amount of INR
24.04 Lakhs as at the end of the previous financial year, has been transferred to a Special
account within a period of 30 days from the end of the said financia! year in compliance with the
provision of section 135(6) of the Act.

ForTAKS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 030474N

Ajay Aggarwal
Partner .
Membership no. 543671

Place: Faridabad




ANNEXURE 2

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(h) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
in the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CMR Aluminum Private
Limited on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under Ciause
(i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act™)

We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of CMR Aluminum Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Opinion

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for
internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements established by-
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAI.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.




Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2} provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,




material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate. :

ForTAKS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 020474N

Ajay Aggarwal
Partner
Membership no. 543671

Place: Faridabad
Date: 19.05.2025

UDIN: 255436718mZY VAN 7041




CME Aluminiom Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
CIN: U213 10HR2020PTCOR4758

{Amount in Rupees lakhs, unless olhenvise stated)

Particulars Noles As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
L.Asscts
(1) Non-current assets
{a} Property, plant and Equipment 4 6,025.99 6,385.77
(b) Capttal work in progess 4 12,380.66 645,65
{c) Other Intangible assets 4 041 0.56
(d) Financial assets
(t) Loans [ 190 -
{i1) Other financial assets 7 172.17 110.26
(&) Not-curcenn iax assets {net) 1.26 7.25
(1) Othcr non current assels 8 1,069.92 1,770.66
19,658.31 8.920,15
{2) Current nssels
{a) Invenlories 9 5,190.17 4,049,53
(b) Financial assels
(i} Trade receivables 10 5,569.63 6,743.36
(ii) Casl and cash equivalent 1 8.67 222
(ii)Bank balances other than {ii} above 1) - -
{iv) Loans 6 333 0.8]
(v) Current tax assel {net) -
(vi) Other financial assets 7 11235 30.99
(c) Other current assels 12 3.017.68 2.222.35
13.901.83 13,049.26
Total assets 33,560.14 21,969.41
1LEquity and liabilities
Equity
() Equity share eapital 13 2,500.00 2,500.00
{b) Citicr cquity 14 5.993.84 3,008.34
Total equity 8,493.84 5.508.34
Liabilitics
Non Current liabilitics
{n) Finaneial Liabilities
{i) Borrowinps 1I5A4&8 17,857.54 13,154.19
(b} Provisians 17 3266 10.83
{c) Delerred Tax Liabilities 5 §43.47 114.55
Currcnt liabilitics
() Financial Liabilities
i Bommowings 15A 1,697.74 1,290.78
ii Trade payables
{a) Total outstanding dues ol micro enterprises and small enlerprises 14.67 17.20
(b} Total owistanding dues of creditors othier tian micro enterprises and small
enterprises 338701 1,385.82
ifi. Onler finpncial liabilitics 16 1,04542 179.72
{b) Other current liabilities 19 545.01 141.87
{c) Provisions 17 18.35 92.62
{d} Current tax liabilities (net) 334.43 §56.49
Total liabilitics 25,066.30 16.461.07
Total Equity and liabilitics 33,560.14 21,969.41

Sipnificant Accounting Policies

Sce accompanying notes to the Anancial statements

As per report of even date attached

ForTAKS&Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN = 0304740

Ajay Agparwal
Partner
Mcembership No. : 543671+

Place : Faridabad
Date :

For and on belalf of the Board of Directors of
CME Aluminium Private Limited

Srislmy

Company Secretary
M. No.: Ad0576




CMR Aluminium Private Limited

CIN: U27310HR2020PTC084758

Statement of profit and loss Tor the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amount in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwisc slated)

. , For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Notes Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations 0 75.446.15 58,885.52
QOther income 21 0639.84 238.60
Total income {1 7608599 59,124.18
Expenses

Cost of raw matenials consumed 2 70,156.45 54,423.15
Employee benefits expenses 23 778.53 883.71
Finance costs b2 303.95 451.05
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 40041 416.13
Other expenses 2% 817.00 809.12
Total expenses (11) 72,457.24 56,983.16
Profit before tax and exceptional items for the period/vear 3.628.75 2,141.02
Exceptional items - -
Profit/{Loss) before tax for the periodfyear 3,628.75 1.141.02
Tax expensec:
= Current tax 589.15 326.76
- Tax Earlier Year 16,37 {6.08)
- Deferred tax (credityeharee 3043 3493
« Deferred tax (eredit¥eharpe for earlier vears - 3.34
Total tax expenses 635.95 358.95
Profit(Loss) after tax for the periodfyear 2,092.80 1,782.07
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to prefit or loss
(i) Remeasurements (loss) of the defined benefit linbilities (8.80) 091
{ii) Income tax relating 1o items that will not be reclassified to prefit or loss 1.51 [0.16)
Other comprehensive {[oss) {7.30) 0.75
Total comprehensive income for the perioliyear 2,985.50 1,782.82
Earnings per equity share: (nominal value per share of #s 10 cach)
Basic 30 11.97 713
Diluted 30 11,97 6.53
Significant Accounting Policies 1-3

Sce accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per report of even date attached

ForTAKS&Co
Chartered Accountanits
FRN : 030474N
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Partiter
Membership No. : 543671
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Date :

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CMR Aluminium Private Limited
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Company Secrelary
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CMR Aluminium Private Limited

CIN: U27310HR2020PTC084758

Statement of Cash Flows for ke vear ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in 2 unless olherwise slated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash Flow from Operating Activitics
Profit before tax 3,628.75 2,141.02
Adjusiments lor :
Depreciation and amortizalion expense 40041 416,13
Re-measuremnent (losses) an defined benefit plans (8.81) 091
Finance Cost 303.95 451.05
Qperating Profit before adjustments 4,324.30 3.009.11
Adjustments:
Decrease/ (Inerease) in inventories (1,140.64) {15.08)
Decrease/ (Increase) in Trade reccivables 1,173.72 6,026.25)
Decrease/ (Increase) in other linancial assets (147.6%) (28.45)
Decrease/ (Increase) in other curvent asscts (94.61) (2,362.06)
(Decreascy Increase in trade payables 1,998.67 (4,200.04)
(Decrease)Increase in provision 20.57 5.59
(DecreseVIncrease in financial liabilities 865.70 169.25)
(Decrease)lucrease in other liabilities 403.14 (31.49)
Change in the adjusiments 3,078.85 {12,727.03)
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (427.58) (165.48)
Net cash Rows used in operating activities (A) 6,975.58 (9,883.40)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including CWIP (11,775.49) (673.88)
Purchase of FD Investment - -
COthier Non Current Advances - -
Net Cash flow generated from Investing Activities () (11.77549) {673.88)
Cash Flow from Fipancing Activities
Proceeds of share capital - .
Borrowings lrom Bank 511031 11,009.87
Finance Cost {303.95) {451.05)
Borrowings from Related Parties
Net Cash flow Generated from Financing Activities (C) 4.806,36 10,558.82
Net Change in Cash & cash cquivalents 6.45 1.54
{A+B+C)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year 222 0.68
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8.67 2.22
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following
Casli in hand 0.15 015
Current accounts 8.52 2.07
Balance as per statement of cash flows 3.67 2,22

ForTAKS & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 030474N

Ajay Apgarwal
Partner

Place : Faridabad
Date :

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
CMR Aluminiun Private Limited

Srisljii-Saxena
Company Sceretary
M. No.: A40576




CMR Aluminium Private Limited

CIN: U27310HR2020PTC084758

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupees lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

Particulars Share eapital Other equity Total equity
Equity sharcs Retained earnings Securities Peminium

{No. of Shares) {Amount) {Amount}
As at April 01, 2023 2,50,00,000 2,500.00 1,225.52 - 372552
Issued during the year - - - - -
Profit for the year - - 1.782.06 - 1,782.06
Other comprehensive (loss) for the vear - - .75 . 0.75
Total comprehensive income for the vear - . 3.008.34 - 1,782.06
As at March 31, 2024 2.50,00,000 2.500.00 3,008.34 - 5,508.34
Issued during the year - - B - -
Profit for the periad - - 2.952.80 - 2,992.80
Oilier comprehensive (loss) for the period - - {7.30) - (7.30}
As at March 31, 2025 2,50,00,000 2,500,00 5,993.84 - 8,493.84
Signilicant Accounting Policies 1-3

Sce accormpanying notes to the financial statements
As per report of even date attached

ForTAKS & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 030474N
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Partner
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Date :
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Company Secretary
M. No.: A40576

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
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CMR Aluminium Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: U27310HR2020PTC084758

{Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

CMR Aluminium Private Limited is a Private Company incorporated in India. The registered office of the company is
situated at 7th Floor, Tower 2, L & T Business Park, 12/4 Delhi, Faridabad, Faridabad, Haryana, India, 121003.

The company is engaged in activities of segregation and classification Aluminium scrap in different metals and selling it
there of.

These Financials Stalements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors of the
Company in their meeting held on 19 May 2025

2. Basis of preparation

These financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirements of Division II of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 1lI), as applicable
to the Financial Statements.

The preparation of these financial statements requires the use of certain significant accounting estimales and judgements.
It also requires the management to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas where
estimates are significant to the financial statements, or areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, are
disclosed in note 4 and 5.

These financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis except for certain subsidy income and interest on delayed
payment from customers which are accounted when the right to receive subsidy from the Government and when there is
no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant subsidy and such interest from customers (refer
note 3.5 & 3.6 below) and under the historical cost convention except for cerlain financial assets and financial liabilities
which have been measured at fair value as per the requirements of the Ind AS;

a) Derivative financial instruments (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments in Note 3.17)
b) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments in
Note 3.16)

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 00,000), except when
otherwise indicated.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.
The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period.

3. Summary of material accounting pelicies

The accounting policies, as set out below, have been consistently applied, by the Group, to all the years presented in the
financial statements, except as mentioned in note 3.1 and 3.19 below:

3.1 New and amended standards and interpretations

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) has carried out amendments 1o the following accounting standards, The
effect on adoption of following mentioned amendments had no impact on the Ind AS financial statements. The Company
has not carly adopted any standards or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

(i) Ind AS 117: Insurance Contracts; The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance
Contracts, vide notification dated 12 August 2024, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or afier 1 April 2024,

(i) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases ~ Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback; The MCA notified the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease
Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.




CMR Aluminium Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025
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(Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and
leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognised any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 1 16.

The amendment does not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

3.2 Current versus non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for determining current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

3.3 Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements ar¢ presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses average
rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on seitlement or translation of monetary items are
recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation
of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.c., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or
loss are also recognized in QCI or profit or loss, respectively).

3.4 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at cach balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to se!l the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

o Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumplions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the following fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
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Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly ot indirectly observable.

Level 3 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing calegorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as
derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as
assets held for distribution in discontinued operation.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, and significant labilities, if any.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required
to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies
the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of
each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

3.5 Revenue from contraet with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when contro! of the goods are transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The Company has generally conciuded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the goods before transferring them to the customer.

Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognized at the point in time when contro! of the asset is transferred to the
customer. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and rebates. The Company
collects Goods & Service Tax (GST) on behalf of the government and therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing
to the Company. Hence, these are excluded from the revenue.

Variable considerations include trade discounts and volume rebates. The Company estimates variable consideration with
respect to the above based on an analysis of accumulated historical experience. The Company adjusts the estimate of
revenue at the earlier of when the most likely amount of consideration is expected to receive changes or when the
consideration becomes fixed.

Sales of services

Revenue from job work in process is recognised by reference to the stage of completion. Stage of completion is
measured by reference to job work in process at the year end and is recognized at measured value of conversion charges.
‘The Company collects service tax/ GST on job work on behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an economic
benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue.

Interest income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Interest income on delayed payment from customers is recognised when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the
ultimate collection of such interest from customers.
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Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Export incentive

Export entitlements in the form of Advance license, Duty Drawback and MEIS {Merchandise Exports from India
Scheme) are recognised in the statement of profit and foss when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme

is established in respect of exporls made and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of
the relevant export proceeds.

3.6 Government grant

Government grants are recognised where there is rcasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates
to an asset, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis.

Government Subsidies in respect of Halol Plant related to Industrial Promotion policy, is recognized when there is no
significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant subsidy.

3.7 Income taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities in accordance with the income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compule the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in India.

Current income tax relating 1o items recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions 1aken in the Income tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretations and considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each
uncertain tax treatment by using either the most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method
predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilitics are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an assel or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.

b) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of lhe temporary differences can be controlied and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foresecable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible lemporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses, if any. Deferred tax assets are recognized 10 the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilized, except:

a) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
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b) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in *OCI’ or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

3.8 Property, plant and equipment (PPL")

An item of PPE is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.

Capital work in progress and PPE are initially recognised at cost net of accumulated depreciation, if any. The initial cost
of PPE comprises its purchase price (including non-refundable duties and taxes and excluding any trade discounts and
rebates), and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, frechold land is carried at historical cost and other items of PPE arc stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When significant parts are required to be replaced at regular
intervals, the Company recognised such paris as separate component of assets and depreciates separately based on their
specific useful life. When an item of PPE is replaced, then its carrying amount is de-recognised from the balance sheet
and cost of the new item of PPE is recognised.

The expenditures those are incurred after the item of PPE is available for use, such as repairs and maintenance, are
charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which such costs are incurred. However, in situations where
such expenditure can be measured reliably, and is probable that future economic benefits associated with it will flow to
the Company, it is included in the asset’s carrying value or as a scparate asset, as appropriate.

Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight line basis using the rates as specified in Part C of Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013, as set out below except for certain components of plant and machinery useful lives of which have
been taken as 8-9 years based on independent assessment of professionals undertaken by Company’s management.

Asset Useful life
Plant and equipment 3-25 years
Office equipment 5 years
Furhiture and fixtures {including leasehold improvements) 10 years
Vehicles 8 years

Individual items of property, plant and equipment costing up to Rs. 10,000/- is charged to the statement of profit and loss
in the year in which it is purchased or acquired.

The identified components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are depreciated
over the life of principal asset.

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of PPE are reviewed, and adjusted appropriately, at each
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reporting date. The effect of any change in the estimated useful lives, residual values and / or depreciation method are
accounted for prospectively, and accordingly the depreciation is calculated over the PPE’s remaining revised useful life.
The cost and the accumulated depreciation for PPE sold, scrapped, retired or otherwise disposed off are de-recognised
from the balance sheet and the resulting gains / (losses) are included in the statement of profit and loss within other
expenses / other income.

3.9 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,

intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Software is
capitalized at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and is amortised over the period of license not
exceeding six years from the date when the asset is available for use.

The amortization expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on straight line basis over
{he estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date they are available for use. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 1 expected
usefu! life is significant different from previous assessment, the change in useful life is made on 2 prospective basis.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.

3.10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences
1o the extent regarded as an adjustment o the interest cosls.

3.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an assct may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset of CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discount
rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time vaiue of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions arc taken into account. 1f no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate vaiuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast caleulations, which are prepared
separately for cach of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing vate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, oF country or countries in which the entity operates, or for
the market in which the asset is used. Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as a
component of depreciation and amortisation expense.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited to the
extent the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is carried at the revalued
amount, in which case the reverse is treated as a revaluation increase.
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3.12 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance with Ind AS 2 — Inventories

Raw materials, traded goods and stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However,
materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials and traded
goods is determined on the basis of weighted average basis. Howevcr, invenlory periaining to stores & spares are valued
at cost.

During the year, the Company changed its inventory cost formula for raw material and traded goods from FIFO to
weighted average method to provide more reliable and relevant information. The change has been accounted for in
accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policics, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, and its impact is not
material, therefore has not been accounted in the financial statements of current year.

Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials and direct labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on a weighted average
basis.

Inventories qualifying as hedged items in a fair value hedge relationship are adjusted for the hedging gain or loss on
hedged item in accordance with Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.13 Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation in accordance with Ind AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets..

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separale assel, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any reimbursement, although the provision
and the related reimbursement asset are presented separately in the financial statements..

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting, period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed and the
reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the same line item where the original provision was
recorded.

3.14 Contingent Liabilities and assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle ora reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements only when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
3.15 Employce benefits
The Company’s employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuscs, contribution to plans, defined benefit plans

and compensated absences. The employee benefits are recognised in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by the Company’s employees.
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Defined contribution plans — Provident fund

i. Provident fund

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards provident funds which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the funds. The Company recognizes the contribution payable to the fund scheme in the statement
of profit and loss, when an employce renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution alrcady paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is
recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. if the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset 10 the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

ii. Defined benefit plans — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined
benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods; this benefit is discounted lo determine its present value. Any unrecognised past
service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The calculation of the Company’s obligation under this
plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable)
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained carnings through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

All other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss as employee benefit
expenses. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the
curtailment or settlement occurs. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

ili. Other employce benefits

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and ulilise it in future
service periods or receive cash compensation during termination of employment.

Compensated absence, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as &
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company treals compensated absences
expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefil for measurement purposes. Such
long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method
at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss.

The Company presents the leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

3.16 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise lo a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through QOCl, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that
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are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time lrame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.c., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Subsequent measurement
;. Financinl assets carried at amortized cost {debt instrument)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect contraciual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that arc solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilitics

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method or at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilitics held for trading and
financial fiabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the criteria under ind AS
109 are satisfied. Al other financial liabilities are subsequentiy measured at amortised cost

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the catrying amounts approximate
the fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

a) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issucd by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requircments of Ind AS 109 and the amount
recognised less cumulative amortization.

b) Borrowings

On initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method, Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integrai part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire
or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under IND AS 109. A financial liability (or a
part of the financial liability) is derecognized from the Company’s balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that
are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value
include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair
value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actuaily be realized.
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For all other financial instruments the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of those
instruments.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there isa
currently enforceable legal right to offsct the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit Toss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, trade receivables and cther contractual rights to receive cash or other
financial asset.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expecis to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted cffective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit
losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if
default oceurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, arc not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the
next 12 months.

For trade receivables, the Company follows "simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss. The application of
simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit toss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has
used a practical expedicnt as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a
provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

3.17 Derivatives and hedge accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts, forward commodity contracts
and currency future contracts to hedge risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations and commeodity price risks.
The Company also holds commodity future contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in price of commodity.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

This category has derivative assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may not
qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109. Any derivative that is either not designated a hedge, or is 50 designated
but is ineffective, is recognized on balance shect and measured initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
derivatives are re-measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognized in the slatement of profit and loss.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Hedge accounting

The Company designates forward commodity contracts under fair value hedges to hedge the exposure 1o changes in
prices of the commodities for its unrecognized firm commitment and existing inventory.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to
which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
the hedge. The effectiveness of hedge instruments is assessed and measured at inception and on an ongoing basis.
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The documentation inciudes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being
hedged, and how the Company will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements
(including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined).

Hedges that meet the hedge effectiveness criteria, the change in the fair value of hedging instrument and the hedge item
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item,
the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised
as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

3.18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis as lhey are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

3.19 Segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Chief Operating decision maker reviews business performance at an overall Company level as one
segment "Aluminium ingots and Zinc ingots™.

3,20 Earning per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they
are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue and buy back.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year, are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

4. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management 10 make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, eXpenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment t0 the carrying amount of asseis or Jiabilitics affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

a) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company,
including legal, contractor, land access and other claims, By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one
or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of
contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome
of future events.
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b) Revenue recognition and presentation

The Company assesses ils revenue arrangements against specific criteria, i.c. whether it has exposure 1o the significant
risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods or the rendering of services, in order 10 determine if it is acting as a
principal or as an agent. The Company has concluded that they are operating on a principal 0 principal basis in all its
revenue arrangements.

(i) Incaseofsales of products under provisional rate basis, the differential amount between final rate and provisional
rate is accounted for once the rates are finalised.

(i)  Subsidy and interest income on delayed payment from customers is accounted for when right to receive credit as
per the terms of Scheme is established in respect of subsidy from the Government and when there is no
significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant subsidy and such intercst from customers.

5. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
A change in an accounting estimate is recognised prospectively by including it in profit or loss in:

o the period of the change, if the change affects that period only, or

e the period of the change and future periods, if the change affects both.

A change in an accounting estimate arises from new information or new developments and is not a correction of an esror.
An accounting estimate is a monelary amount that is subject to measurement uncertainty. fn using estimation techniques,
the Company uses assumptions and inputs that reflect the best available information.

a) Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generaling unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is
based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use caleulation is based on a DCF model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the
Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU
being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF mode! as well as the expected
future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These cstimates are most relevant (o goodwill
and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Company.

b) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits}

The present value of the gratuity is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive lo changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting datc.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated
in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of
the post-cmployment bencfit cbligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific
countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

¢) Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables
Trade receivables generally do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate

allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems
them not to be collectible.
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d) Property, plant and equipment

Refer note 3.8 & 3.9 for the estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and investment property. The carrying
value of property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in note 4.

¢) Intangible assets

Refer note 3.10 for the estimated useful life of intangible assets. The carrying value of intangible assets has been
disclosed in note 4.

f) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The
jnputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements inciude considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility.

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

g) Uncertainties exist with respeet to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax Iaws, and the
amount and timing of future taxable income.

Given the wide range of business relationships and the long term nature and complexity of existing contractual
agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, oF future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes
provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience
of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax
authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing
in the respective domicile of the companies. Refer Note 5 Recognition of deferred tax assels: availability of future
taxable profit against which tax josses carried forward can be used.
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MNote-d
Property, Plant and Equigment

Particulars Freehold Innid # Plant and equipment Buildings Furnitures & Fixtores Qffice Equipment Yehicle Computers including Total Cupital work in
SCOVErs rogress
As at March 31,2023 1,524.22 3,170.45 2,005.55 23.90 122,90 = 15.01 6,951.02 190.37
Add: Additions 60.08 140.01 767 14.36 0.60 pEF )] G89.59
Less:Disposals / adjustments (4.31) (2.50) {6.81) {234.31)
As at March 31,2024 1,524.22 3,226,22 2,135.56 23.90 130.57 14.36 12.141 7,166.93 645.65
Add: Additions . 533 1100 14,95 11.88 43.12 | 11836.364
Less:Disposals / adjustments - (1.21) - {0.54) {1.94) - {0.74) {4.43) -
As at March 31,2025 1,524.22 3,230,304 2,235.56 3436 14354 1436 23.25 1,205.62 12,3580.66
Regrecintion
As at March 31, 2023 - 265.85 7246 1.40 23.03 - 5.1 367.85 B
Add:Charge for the year - 318.54 64.56 128 25.09 0.91 4.61 41598 -
Less:Disposals / adjustments - (0.91) - - - (1.76} (2.67) .
As at March 31, 2024 - 583.48 137.02 3.68 48.12 0.91 195 781.17 -
Add:Charge for the period - 305.76 60.49 310 25.24 1.71 1% 400.26 -
Less:Disposals / adjustments - (0.27) - (0.10) (0.80) - [0.63) {1.80) -
As at March 31,2025 - 338,97 197,51 6.68 7256 2.62 11.29 1,179.63 -
Net Uloek
As at March 31, 2024 1.524.22 2.642.74 2,098.54 20,22 §2.44 1345 4.15 6,385.77 645.65
As ot March 31, 2025 1,524.22 2.341.37 2,038.05 27.68 70.98 11.74 11,96 6,025.99 12.380.66
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Capital work in progress ageing schedule including assets ncquired pursunnt to scheme of arrangement:

As at March 31,2025

Parficulars Less than 1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 yenrs Marc ihan 3 venrs Total
Projcels in progress 12,380.66 - - 12,380.66
Projccts lemporarnily suspended - - - -
Tatal 12,380.66 - - 12,380.66
As at March 31,2024
Pacticulars Less thon 1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 years Aore than 3 vears Totnl
Projecis in progress 587.48 5817 - 64565
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
Total 587.48 58.17 - 6.45.65
Pacticulars Softwnre
Cost
As at March 31,2023 0.90
Add:Additions -
Less:Disposals / adjustments -
Asat March 31, 2024 0.90
Add: Additions .
Less:Disposals / adjustments -
As at darch 31,2025 0.90
Degrecintion
As at March 31, 2023 0.19
Adi:Charge for the year 0.15
Less:Disposals / adjustments -
Asat March 31, 2024 0.34
Add:Chasge for the period 015
Less:Disposals 7 adjustments -
As at March 31, 2025 0.49
Net block
As at March 31,2024 0.56
Asat March 31, 2025 0.41
d(a). Pre-Operntive Expenses (Included in Capital work in progress)
Particulnrs Asat March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Onpening Pre-Operalive expenses 141.61 92.81
Salaries, wages and bonus 11558 54,93
Pr 14.21 335
Vehicle Running 144 1.20
Power & fiel £6,64 3.58
Rates and taxes 9.53 546
Travelling and conveyance expenses 46,94 915
Communiciiton expensc 0.23 0.06
Legal and professional expenses 11.29 0.22
Miscellancous expenses 60,55 3.24
Stalf Worker Welfare 54.24 10.10
Insuranece Charges 2719 18.11
Interest on Borrowing 27938 -
Manpower Services 9215 -
Depreciation 545 -
Securily Services 1.42 -
Consumables 1.79 -
Store Consumplion 3.49 -
Land Developinent Charges - -
Capitalized during the year - {60.571)
Closing balance carricd forward 93874 14161
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Note-§ Deferred Tax Asset
(a) Tax expense/{credit)

Deferred tax (Credit) expense

[ns respect of current year origination and reversal of temporary
differences

Income tax

Earlier year deferred tax

Income Tax pertaining to previous peried

Toral 1ax {credity expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

OCI Seclion
Deferred tax related 10 items recognised in OCI during the year
Incoitie tax charged to OCI

{b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the sccounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for March 31, 2025

Profiv(Loss) before tax

At India's statutory income tox rate of 17.16%

Al the eTective itcome tax rate of 17.16%

Tax deductibtle exp

Effect of expenditure not aflowable under Income Tax Act, 1961

Earlier Year tax
At the effective income tax rate of 17.16% {March 31, 2024: 17.16%)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss
Total

Deferred tax:
Deferred tax relates to the following:

Deferred tax Liability

-Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial reporting
Deferred Tax Asset (Net)

-On MTM

-on deferred govermment prant related to EPCG

Provision for gratuity, leave encashmeni and others

Deferred Tax Lisbility (Net)

As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
3043 3493
589.15 326.76
- 334
16.37 (6.08)
63595 358.95
1.51 (0.16)
1.51 {0.16)
As at March 31,2025  As at March 31, 2024
3,628.75 2,141.02
622.69 367.40
622.69 367.40
{9.73) (9.73)
6.61 4,02
16.37 (2.74)
635.95 35895
635.95 358,95

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

162.59 138.23
743 {1.00)

(17.76) (17.76)
(8.77) (4.97)

143.47 114.55

The Company off sels 1ax assets and liabilitics if and only if it has a Jegmlly enforccable right to sct off current tax assels and current rax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities refate to income taxes levied by the same 1ax authority.

Non-current Current
Note-6 Loans (at amortised cost) As at March 31, 2025 Asat March 31,2024 Asat March 31,2025 Asat March 31, 2024
Unseeured, considered good, unless etherwise stafed
Loans to employees
- Others 1.90 - 3.33 0.81
1.90 - 3.33 0.81
Note-7 Other Financinl assets As at March 31, 2025 Asat March 31,2024 Asat March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
Unsceured, cansidered good (at fair value)
Mark to market gain on commodity futures - Receivable from - - 33,01 -
holding company
Unsecured, considesed good {at amortized value)
Depaosits with bank having maturity for mtore than 12 months {Note 7294 72.94 - -
interest accrued on fixed deposits and others - 0.49 - -
Securily deposits 99.23 36.83 0.64 028
Bank Charges Recoverable - - 5.70 -
Qauity Claim Recgivable - - 73.00 29.15
Interest receivable - - - 1.56
172.17 110.26 112,35 30.99

* Deposits Rs. 72.94 (March 31, 2024: 72.94) are pledged with banks against bank guarantees, o custom department.



CMR Aluminium Private Limited

CIN: U27310iIR2020PTC084758

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amount in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Non-current

Note-8 Other non current nssct As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
Capilal advances 1,062.27 1,766.17
Prepaid expenses 165 4.49
1,069.92 1,710.66
Note-9 Inventories {at lower of cost and net realisable value} As at March 31,2025 Asat March 31, 2024
Raw materials {Including INR 4144.63 lakhs (March 31,
2024:1,071.47 lakhs) in teansit)* 4,907.19 3,825.87
Stores and Spares 282,98 223.66
5,190.17 4,049.53
*In transit includes Rs Nil (Mar 31, 2024: Rs. 17.27) from fellow subsidiary, CMR Katania Recycling Private Ltd
As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
Note-10 Trade Receivables
Receivables from Related party 5,569.63 6.734.14
Receivables from Others - 9.22
5.569.63 6,743.36
Trade Receivable apeing sehedule;
As at March 31, 2025
Quistanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Current but not due P
! Less than 6 6 Months- 1 Year 1-2 Years Total
months
Undisputed Trade Reccivables - considered pood 5.569.63 . - - 5.569.63
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significanl increase in . j )
credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivable — ¢redit itnpaired - - . .
Disputed Trade receivables - considered pood - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in . j _ i
creditrisk
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - . . .
Total 5,569.63 - - - 5,569.63
_As at March 31, 2024
Qutstanding for the Tollowing periods from due date of payment
Particulars
Current but not due L::i:::: 6 6 Months- 1 Year 1-2 Years Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered pood 2.569.90 4,173.46 - - 6,743.36
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in j _ ) j .
credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered pood - B - - .
Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in . . i} N }
credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired . . - - -
Total 2,569.90 4,173.16 - - 6,743.36
Note-11 Cash and cash equivalent
Asat March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
Cash znd Cnsh Equivalents
Cash on hand 0.15 Q.15
Balances with banks:
- Current account 8.52 2.07
8.67 .22
Deposits with banks
Depasits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months 72.94 72.94
72.94 72.94
Less ¢ Disclosed under
Other non financial assets (Note 7) 729 72.04
72,94 7294
Note-12 Other current assets As at March 31,2025 Asat March 31,2024
(Unsecured, Cansidered Good)
Prepaid cxpenses 46,32 332
Firm commitment for purchase of inventory of raw matenals 12.71 5.61
Advance to employees against expenses - 0.88
Advance to suppliers
1o related party 0.68 -
to others 7031 233.74
Batance with Statutory/ Government Authorities® 2.887.66 1.978.80
3,017.68 222235

*Rs.189.63 Lacs towards GST on Goods in Transit are included in Balance with Stautoryf Governinent Authorities



CMR Aluminiwm Peivate Limited

CIN: U29310HR2020PTC034758

Notes to linnncial statements for the vear eaded March 31, 2025
(Ampunt in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at Maorch 31, As at March 31,

2025 024
*Aulhorised shares
2,95,00,000 Equity Shares of T 10 Each (March 31, 2024 2,95,00,000 equaty 2,950.00 2.950.00
shares of Rs 10/ each)*
45,600,000 Optionally convertible Preference Shares of € 10 Each (March 31, 2024 45000 450.00
4500000 Octionally convertible Preference Shares of 2 10 Each)
Total Autharised Share Capital 3,400.00 3.400.00
Issued shares, subscribed and Mufly pid -up shares
2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 Each (March 31, 2024 2,50,00,000 equity 2,500 00 2,500.00
shares of Rs 10/- each)
2,500.00 2!500.0!!
(1} Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the yenr
{n} Equity Shares of 210 each
As ol March 31,2025 As at Mareh 31, 2024
No. ¢f shares Amount in INR No. of shares Amount in EINR
At the beunning of the year
Eqnity Shares 2.50.00,000 2,500 00 2.50,00,000 2,500 00
1ssued during the vear - - - -
Qutsinnding at the ead of the year 2,50,00,000 2,500.00 2,50,00,000 2,500,00

{3 Teems/ rights atinched 10 equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par vatue of Rs 10 per share. Ench holder of equity shares is entitled to one voie per share and entitled 1o receive dividends as declared from time Lo

time
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the helders of equity shares will be entitled Lo receive any of the remaining assets of the Company. after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distnbutien
will be in proportion 1o the rumber of Equity Shares held by the Sharchelders

» The authorized share eapital of the Company increased on 03rd Apnl 2023 as follows:
The authorized share eapital of the Company is incteased from Rs. 25,00,00,000 to Rs 28,20,00,000 comprising of Rs 25,00,00,000 divided mto 2,50,00.000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ eachand Rs.
3,20,00,000 divided 1010 32,00,000 Optionally Conventible and Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 10 each

Further, the Equity share eapitz) incrensed from Rs. 25,00,00,000 1o Rs 29,50,00,000 divided into 2,95,00,000 Equity Shares of s, 10 ezch on January 03, 2024,
The nuthorized share eapital of the Company 15 increased from 28,20,00,000 to Rs. 32.70.00.000/ comprising of Rs. 29,50,00,000 divided mto 2,65,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/~ each and Rs
3,20,00,000 divided into 32,00,000 Optionally Convertible and Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 10 each.

Thereafter, on AMarch 18, 2024, the authorized capital has been increased as follows.

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs 34,00,00,000~ (Rupees Therty-Four Crore) compnising of Rs. 29,50,00,000 {Rupees Twenty Nine Crare Fifty Lakh) divided into 2.95.00,000 (Rupees
Two Crare Ninety Five Lakh) Equity shaces of Rs 10/ (Rupees Ten) cach and Rs. 4,50,00,000 (Rupees Four Crore Filty Lakh} divided into 45,00.000 (Forty-Five Lakh) Optianally Convertible and
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 10 (Ruoees Tend each

{c) Deisils of sharehiolders holding more thnn 5% shaves tn the company

As at Maozch 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Name of the sharcholder No. of shares % holding in the No. of shares % holding in the
equily shares equily shares
CMR Green Technologies Limited
Equnty Shares 2.49.99.999 L00P% 2.49.99.999 100%
Taotal 2.49.92.999 100% 2.49.99.999 100%

(D) Details of shares held by Promoters
As nt March 31,2025

No. of shares at the

. Change during the No.of stares at the % change
Promater Nume hegmr;iel:‘grol'ihe year end of the ycor % of Tolal Shnres during the yenr
CMR Green Technolonies Limited
Equity Shares 2.49.99.999 - 2.49.99.939 100% 0%
Total 2,4%.99.992 - 2,4%,99.999 100% 0%

As ni March 31, 2024

Nao, of stinres at the

Chaage during the No. of shares at the %a chnnge

. .
Promoter Name bcgmr;.l:"iol'lhe year end of the year % of Total Shares during the year
CMR Green Technologies Limited 2.49.99.999 - 2.49.99.599 100%% 0%
Nole 14, Other Equity As at March 31, As at March 31,

2025 2024
{n} Retained earninpgs
Balance a1 bepinning of year 3,008 34 1,225 52
ProfiviLoss) for the vear 2,992 80 1,782 06
Other comprehensive income for the vear (7 300 0.76

5.991.84 3.008.34




CMR Aluminium Private Limiled
CiNe U27310EHR2020PTCOB4758

Noles to financial stntements for the year ended March 31,2025

{Amount in Rupees takhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note-15 A. Finanginl linbilities

Borrowings Non-curreat Current
Asal March 31, AsarMarch 31, Asnt March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024
From banks
Term loans ( Secured } 5,260 24 4,32365 - -
Cash credit { Sceured ) - - 29504 22132
9,260.24 4.223.65 295.04 22132
Curremt matunty of non current borrowings {1.402.70) (1,069 46) 1,402 70 1,069 46
Nel amount 7.857.54 3.154.19 1.697.74 1,250,78
The maturity profile, security and rate of interest of the tepy loans from hanks are as given helowv:
Loan Amount (Rs
Loan N Rate of Interest Securily
in Lacs) Ate of Interes Repavment Terms ecurily
5 years including morateaum period of 1
1604 20 year. The Llerm loan outstanding as on Refer N
HDFC Bank (March 31,2024 - | 834%-8.85% [31.03.25 is repayable in 6 equal quarterly b“l er Nole (a)
2,673.65) instaliment of 267 37 lacs starting from clow
June 2025
2392 40 7 years including moratnum pericd ol 1.5 Refer Nate (b
Axis (Much 31,2008 | 805%-835%  [years 22 cquat quanerty insuatmemsof  [155r ot )
NIL) 108 77 tacs siarting from 30 06.2026 clow
159798 7 years including moratrium period of 1.5 Refer Note (b
Federal (March 31,2024 | 848%-873% lyears 22 cqual quanterly insuallments of b:I er Note (b)
NIL) 72,63 lacs starting from 30.06.2026 o
3665.66 7 years including moratrium penicd of 1.5 Refer Note (b
ICICI Bank (March 31,2024 | £50%-860% |years 22 equal quarterly mstaliments of b°| er Note {b)
1550) 166 62 lacs starung from 31 12 2025 clow
The security nnd ente of Interest of the short term borrawings are as piven below:
Loan Amount .
Loan {Rs in Lacs) Rate of [nierest Repayment Terms Securily
29504 Refer Not
HDFC Bank (March 31,2024 9.55%9.70% Repayable on demand efer Note (¢}
2132 belaw

(@) 16M 1030 LACUINES IFOM HJFL 1aNK Ore SeCurea oy

-Exclusive charge over movable fixed assets ( both present and future) and immevable assets situated at survey no 466, Mouje-Vanod, Taluka Dadasa, Village Vanod, Surendranagar, Gujarat.
Second pan passu charge on current assets of the borrower.

Lorporate Guarantee of CMR Green Technologies Limited

(b) Tenm loan faclties from Axis, Federal and ICICI Bank are secured by

-Ist Pan Passu charge over movable fixed assets (both present and finure) of Qdisha Plant

- Ist Pari Passu charge by way of equitable r ge of ble asseis d 21 Mouza-Derba, PS Katarbaga, PS No 33, Tabasil - Rangah, Distnet - Sambalpur, ©Onisga in the Rengali sub registratian
Elaka of the district jurisdiction of Sambalpur bearing major settlernent Khata no 326/433, Khata no 326/432 2nd Khata no 326/432.

-Sceand pari passu charge on current assels of the borrower.

-Corporate Guzrantee of CMR Green Technologies Linuted

{c) Working Capital facilities from HDFC Bank are secured by

.Exclusive charge over movable fixed nssets { both present and future) and immovable assets situated at survey no 466, Mouje-Vaned, Taluka Dadasa, Village Vanod, Susendranagar, Gujaral.
-Farst pari passu charge on current assets of the borrower

-Corporate Guarantee of CMR Green Technologies Lamited

Note-15 B, Financial liabilities Non-current Current

Asat March 31, AsatMarch 31,  As nt March 31, As at March 3),

2025 2024 2015 2024
From Related Partics
Redeemnable Preference Shares Liabiluy
QOpening Balance
Issued during the year#=a* 10,000 00 10.000.00 - -
Closing Balance 10,000.00 10.000.00 - -
Reconcilintion of mumber of shares
Prefevence Shares
Particulnrs As at Mnrch 31, 2025 As ot Mareh 31, 2024
Number Amount Number Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the vear - - - -
Shares Issued during the vear ** 44,327,880 10.000.00 44,27 880 10,000.00

Shares boughs back during the year - - -

Shares outstandicig ot the end of the year 34,271,880 10,000.00 44.27.880 10.000.00
»2During the Year company has issued 44,27,880 Prefernce shares at permtinm
asns Renavment schedule of 0.01% Qptionally Convertible Non-Cumulntive Prefercnee Shares issued:

Particulars No. tssue date Date of redemption Face value Share Premium | Tetal Value
0.01%_Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Pref. Shares 9.13,242 06-Apr-2023 06-Apr-2043 10 209 2.00000
001% Non Cumulative Optionally Canvertible Pref Shares 11.41,552 06-Jul-2023 QbJul-2043 10 09 2.500.00
0.01% Mon Cumulative Optionally Convenible Pref. Shares 10.96,491 06-0¢c1-2023 06-Oct-2043 10 218 2.500.00
0.01% Non Cumulative Optionally Conventible Pref. Shares 12.76.595 22-Mar-2024 22-Mar-2(043 iD 225 3.000.00
Total 44.27.880 10,000.00

Termy! Rights nttached to Non Cumulntive and Optionally Convertible Preference Shares

0.01% Non Cumulative and Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/« each redecmable within 20 years from the date of allotment Each holder of Preference shares is cntitted to such rights and
pewaleges as available under Companies Act, 2013
They shall earry 3 preferential rights vis-3-vis equity shares of Company in respect of payment of capital and dividend tn case of winding up and shall be on non pammcipating in surplus of the Company
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Notes to financinl statements for the year eaded March 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupees Inkhs, unless otherwise stated)

Nate=16. Other financial liabitities

Asat March 31,

As at March 31,

Cther finnacial liabilities at fair value 2025 2013
Mark to market loss on commadity futures- Payable to holding company - 43.94
Other linnnclal liabilittes at amortised cost
Empioyee related liabilities 31389 17.04
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2219 2208
Security deposil from customers/ others 010 o
Payable for capital poods 9B9.24 96.56
1,045.42 179.72
Non-current Current
Note-17, Provisions As nt March 30, Asat March 31, As ol March 31, As a1 March 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Provision for gratuity 2266 1083 025 0.10
Provision for leave benefits - - 15.10 9.52
23.66 10.83 18.35 9.62
MNote-18. Trade Payable As at March 31, As at March 31,
2015 2024
{2) Toral ducs cutstanding to micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 37) 14 67 17.20
(b) Tatal eutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterpnses and small
enterprises
-Related Partics 72476 51789
Qthers 2.662.26 861.93
3,401.69 1,101,02
——
Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As nt March 31,2025
Particulars Not duc or unbilledd  Less than ] year I-2 years 2.3 yenrs Morethan 3 Total
years
Total autsianding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 14.67 - B - - 1467
Tatal outstanding dues of ereditors other than miero enterprises and small enterprises 2,744.37 153 62 6.52 482 51 - 338702
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small eaterprises - . - - - -
| Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpnses . - - - - -
| Total 2,759.04 153.62 6.52 482.51 - 3,401.69
_As nt March 31, 2024
Particulnrs Not due or unbilledd  Less than 1 year 1.2 yenrs 2-3 years More than 3 Total
YEATS
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerpeises 15 175 - - - 17.20
Tata! cutsianding dues of ereditors ather than micro enterpnses and small enterprises 307.87 59228 k3 [ 482 51 - 1,385.82
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small eaterprises - - - - - -
Disputed dues of creduors other than micro cnterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
Total 313 594.03 316 482.51 - 1.403.02

Note-19. Other Current Liabilities

Advance from customers:
- Others
Deferred Govemment Geant
Taxes & Statutory dues
Liability towards Carporate Soctal Responsibility
Interest on Income Tax
Other payable Lo related panty (Refer note 29.1)

As at March 31,

As nt March 31,

2015 2024

280 0.26
a4 M 103.50
3852 2214
2404 906
1486 691

0.05 -
535,01 F41.87
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amount in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note-20 Revenue From Operations
Revenue from contract with customers
Other operating revenue:

Sale of services

Sale of scrap and others
Export Incentive

Total

Note-21 Other income

Ierest on fixed deposils

Unrealised pain on commodity future contracts (net)

Forward premium on realised and unrealised commadity conlracts
Profits in foreigm exchange fluetuation (net)

Interest fram related parties

Interest from others

Profit on disposal of property, plant & equipment (Net)

QOther Income

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
152.08 1,886.46
75,285.48 56,999.06
8.59 -
75,446.15 58,885.52
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
407 4.08
43.28 091
193.82 1.58
- 738
ELER) 204.75
0.37 1.4
0.82 1.18
3.24 172.37
639.84 238.66




CMR Aluminium Private Limited
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupees lakhs, untess othenwise stated)

Note-22, Cost of raw materials consumed March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Inventory al the beginnitg of te year 382588 3,924.89
Add ; Purchiases duninp the year 71.231.76 54.324.14

75,063.04 58,249.03
Less : Inventory at the end of the year 4,907.19 3.825.238
Cost of raw materials consumed 70,156.45 54423.15
Note-23 Employee benefits expenses
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 665,32 754.82
Contribution to provident and other funds 507 5.81
Gratuity 8.59 4.57
Staff welfare expenses 95.65 117.51
778.53 383,71
Note-24 Finance costs
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest expense:
- On bamowings and others* 278.37 396.39
- Interest 1o relaled parties 23.10 44.43
- QOther finance cost 2.48 10.23
303.95 451,05
* Interest on Borrowing includs interest on Income fax of Rs 14.85 Lacs
Note-25 Depreciation and amortization expense
-Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 4) 400.26 41598
-Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 4) 0.15 0.15

400.41 416.13




CMR Aluminium Private Limited

CIN: U27310HR2020PTC084758

Notes to financial statements for (e yvear entded Mareh 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note-24 Other expenses

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Consumption of stores and spares 163.84 22748
Power & fuel 121.69 137.01
Bank charpes 348 345
Repair and maintenance of:
~ Plant and equipment 78.95 115.59
- Buildings 7.35 589
- Others 1.43 6.34
Printing & stationery 0.04 0.73
Rent paid 4. 3320
Insurance charpes 13.74 6.98
Rates and taxes 107 13.61
Travelling and conveyance expenses 498 5.52
Vehicle running and maintenance 0.15 0.17
Freight and cartage outward 226.01 160.09
Communication expense 292 3.00
Lass on commedity future contracts (net) - 6.78
Unrealised gain on commodity future contracis (net)
Commission on commaodity hedpe derivalive 63.42 27.82
Paywment to statutory auditor (Refer details below) 281 200
Lepal and prolessional expenses 17.90 15.39
Comorate Social Responsibility 2366 9.74
Loss in foreign exchange fuctuation (net) B.l14 -
Miscellaneous expenses 3541 27.83
TOTAL 317.90 809.12

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Payment to statutory auditor (including to branch auditors):
As auditors:

Audit fee 2.00 200

Total 2.00 2.00




CMR Aluminium Private Limited

CIN: U27310HR2020PTCO0B4758

Notes to financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupees lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

Note :27 Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard-115 ** Revenue form Contracts"

{a) Type of Goods or Service Nil
(b) Geographical Region Nil
(¢) Market or Type of Customer Nil
(d) Type of Contract Nil
() Contract Duration Nil
¢ Timing of transfer of goods or service Nil
() Sales Channels Nil
(1} Opening Trade receivables Nit
(i) Closing Trade receivables Wil
{j) Contract Assels Nil
{k} Contract Liabilities Nil

Note:28 Scament reporting
As company preducts lave same risks and returns which are predominantly govemed by market condition i.c. demand and supply position and hence

have been considered as representing a single business segment.

Note:29 Related party disclosure
In accordance with the requizements of [ND AS -24 Related Party Disclosures’ , names of the refated parties, related party relationslip, transactions and

outstanding balances where control exists and with whom transactions have taken place during the period are:

Description of relationship Names of related parties
Mohan Aganwal - Director

(a) Key management personnel Director and their relatives
Raghav Agarwal - Directer
Akshay Agarwat - Director fw.e.[. 22-09-2023]
Kaushal Goyal - CFO [w.e.f.16-02-2024 10 15.05.2025]
Ridhima Bagla- Director [w.c.f. 22-09-2023)
Srishti Saxena - Company Scerclary [w.e.l. 08-11-2023]

{b) Holding Company,Fellow Subsidiarics and Associates

(i) Holding Company:- CMR Green Technologies Limited

(i) Fellow Subsidiaries (Subsidiary of Holding Company):- CMR Toyotsu Aluminium India Prvate Limited
CMR Nikket India Private Limiled
CMR Welfare Foundation

CMR-Kataria Recycling Private Limited
CMR Green LLC- (w.c.f. 02-08-2023)
(i1} Assosciates Nikkei CMR Aluminium Private Limited
(d) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personncl and their relatives
CMR-Chilo Industries India Private Limiled
CMR-Chiho Recycling Technology Private Limited



CMR Aluminium Private Limited
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Notes to financial stafements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Amount in Rupces lakhs, unfess othenwise stated)

Note ; 29.1 Related party transactions
Transactions during the periodfvear:

Particulars

Haolding Company

Fellow Subsidinries

Enterprises over which Directors and
their relatives have significant
influence

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Sale of goods

CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
CMR Green Techrologies Limited
CMR Toyotsu india Private limited

22,470.90

21,816.12

4143840

90.19

24,143.81

Sale of property, plant and equipment
CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

CMR Toyotsu india Private limited

Nikkei CMR Aluminium India Private Limited

96.27

4,76
0.56
1.57

Sale of Store

CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

CMR Green Technologies Limited

CMR toyotsu india Private limited

CMR Eco Aleminium Private Limited
Purchase of raw materials and traded goods
CMR Nikkei [ndia Private Limited
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited
CMR Kataria Recycling private limited
CMR Toyotsu india Pavate limited

CMR ECO Aluminiurn fndia Private Limited
CMR Green LLC

CMR Green Technologies Limited

1.59

283

1.89
042

21,872.00
36
919.73
1,227.43
20.85

4.62

13.50
7.23

848831

142.63
51545

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

CMR Eco Aluinium Private Limited

CMR Green Technologies Limited

8295
§.59

5.90

Purchasc of store items

CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

CMR toyetsu india Private limited .
CMR Graen Technologies Limited

2.16
1.59

591

Commodity or Deriaviives(Gain/Loss)
CMR Green Technolopies Limited

343.15

interest of Rs. 98.54 lacs)

Conversion of Loan and interest into Investment
CMR Green Technologies limited {including cenversion of

7.000.00

Expenses made By Other on our Behalf
CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

CMR Green Technologies Limited

CMR Toyotsu Aluminium {ndia Private Limired

3L76

60.72

127.57

0.12

Expenscs made on belalf of related Party
CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
CMR Green Teclnologies Limited

0.28

1.54

Interest Paid

CMR ECO Aluminium Private Limited
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited

CMR Tovolsu Aluminium India Prvate Limited

14.84
0.33
7.93

4.08
40.36

Investment
CMR Green Technologies Limited

3.000.00

Interest received

CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
CMR Green Technologies Limited
CMR ECO Aluminium Private Lid

37643

67.19

17.74

137.35

0.21

Job Work Charge Received
CivIR Nikkei India Privale Limited

152.08

1.886.46

Corporate Social Responsibility
CMR Welfare Foundation

Guarantee Given
CMR Green Technolopies Limited

242813

18.092.00




CMR Aluminium Private Limited
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Notes to financin! statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amount in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Enterprises over which Directors and

i Holding Company Fellow Substdinries their relatives have signilicant

Particulars influence
March 31,2025 | March 31,2024 | March 31,2025 | March 31,2024 | March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

Trade payable
CMR-Chiho Industries India Private Limited - - - . 423.04 423,04
CMR Chilio Recycling Technologies Private Limited - - - - 34.81 34.81
CMR Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited - - i28.22 34.0t - -
CMR ECO Aluminium Private Ltd 13221
CMR Kataria Recycling private limited - . 1.78 2237 - -
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited - - - - 4,70 3.67
Trade receivables
CMR Green Technotogies Limited 3,749.40 6,181.24
CMR Nikkei India Private Limited - - 1,818.27 550.61 - -
Nikkei CMR Aluminiwm India Private Limited 1.97 1.85 - -
CMR ECO Aluminium Private Lid - . - 0.44 - -

Corporate Guaranice given on behalf of the company by 3
Outstanding as at the reporting period
CMR Green Technologics Limited 27.520.13 25,092.00 - - - -

Receivable from holding company on account of
outstanding derivative contracis

CMR Green Technologies Limited 33.01 - - B - -
Payable to helding company on account of outstanding
derivative contracts

CMR Green Technolopies Limited - 43.94 - - - -




CMR Aluminium Private Linited

CIN: U27310HR20207TC034758

Notes to Minancial statements for the vear ended March 31,2025
(Amount in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note:30 Earninps Por Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amsounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equaty holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
The following: reflects the income and share data used in the basic EPS comp

As at March 31,2025 As ot March 31,2024
Profit atinbutable to Equity Shareholders 299280 1,782.07
\nghl:d f\vcmge number of equity shares used for computing 2,50,00,000 2,50,00.000
basic and diluted eaminps per share
Face value of per equity share 10 10
Enrnings per share Irom continuing operations - Basic () 11,97 .13
Earaings per share from continuing aperations - Diluted {3) 11.97 653
Nate:31 Financial Instruments
1. Financiat Assets-Fair volues
Particulars Fair Value As at March 31,2025 Asat March 31,2024
Iierarchy
1. Financial asscts designated at falr value through profit and R
lnss
2. Finonclal nssets designated at amortized cost
a) Cash & Cash Equivalents 8.67 222
3.Investment in subsidiary companies at cost -
1I._Finoncial Linbilitics-Fair Yalue
Particalars Falr Value Asat March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024
Nierarchy
t. Financinl liability desipnated at amortized cost
a) Borrowings 19,555 28 14,444 97
b) Trade Payables
-total Qutstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small R .
Enterprises )
-Tatal OQutstanding dues of creditors other thans Micro Enterprises 338701 138582
and Small Enterprises
¢) Other Fi in] Linbality 1.045.42 179.72

The fair value of financial assels and liabilities are mcluded at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged 10 a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The carying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents, trade recewvables, Shost tenm loans, trade payables, short term

bomrowings and other current financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to thesr short-term nature. Fair value for security

depasits (other than perpetual security deposits) has been presented in the above table Fair value {or all ather non-current fi ial assets and 15 equivalent to

the amortized cost, intefest rate on them is equivalent to the market rate of interest,

1f1. Fair Vaolue hicrarchy

Level [ - This ingludes fi | s d using quoted prices {Unadjusted) i active markets for identical assets and habalities

Level 2 - The farr value of financial instnuments that are not iraded 1 an active marked is determined using valuation techmques which maximmze the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. Il all significant inputs required to fair value an mstrument are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2. Inpuis other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or Liability, either directly (e as prices) of indirectly (i e. derived from
prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on cbservable market data {uncbservable inputs).

1V. Valuation techniques used to determine fair value
Level 1 - Finzncial assets categonized i Level 1, are fair valued based on market data as at reporting date

Level 2 - The farr valuaton of investments categorized in Level 2 has been determined on the basis of independent valuation done by respective funds
Note:32 Financial Risk Management

The Company's operational activities expase to various financial risks i.e. markel risk, credit risk and risk of liquidity. The Company realizes that nsks are inherent and

integral aspect of any business. The campany’s board of directors has the overall ibility for the manag of these nisks The company has the risk monagement
policies and systems in place and are reviewed regulasly to reflect changes in market ditions and the wy's activiies. The primary focus is to foresee the
unpredictability of fi ial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financtal performance. The pany’s oudil c oversees how

tmanagement manitors compliance with the risk management pelicies and procedures, and reviews the adzquacy of risk management framework in relation to the risks
faced by the company

2) Credit Risk

Credit Risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contraciual obligation resulting in fi ial loss to the company Credit sk anses from the cperating
activities primarily from trade receivebles and from its financing activities including cash and cash equivalents. deposits with banks, Investments and other finaneial
instruments. The camying amount of financial assets represcnts the maximum credit exposure and there is no credit exposure




Financial assets other than Trade Receivables, Loans to corporate & others and [nvestment in Real Estate Funds.

b} Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risks result from the possible inability of the company to meet eurrent or future payment obligations due to lack of cash or cash equivalents The kiquidity risk is
assessed and managed by the finance department as a part of day to day and medium term liquidity planning.

The company holds sufficient liquidity to ensure the fulfillment of all planncd payment obligations at matunty The company’s liquidity sk policy 15 lo mamtain
sufficient liquidity reserve at all times based on cash flow projections to meet payment obligation when it falls due. The pnmary source of liquidicy 15 cash generated from
operations

The table below analyze the company”s financia! habilives into relevamt maturity groupings based on thear contractual matrines for all financial habilties essential for an

understanding of timeng of cash flows,

Particulars Total Less than 1vear More than lvear
As at March 31,2025
Borrowings 19,55528 - 19,555.28
Trade Payables

-Total Qutstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

~Tatal Oumnnding dues of ereditors other than Micro Enterprises 338701 338701
and Smoll Enterprises -
Capital Creditors . . .
Other pavabl 54501 545 01 -

<) Marker Risk
i Currency Risk

Foreign cusrency risks for the company 15 from changes 1n exchange rates and the related changes in the value of financial instements in the functional currency (INR).
The company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions primanly with respect to US Dollar. The company s cxposure to changes in

foreign currency other than USE is not matenal

To mitigate the éumency fluctuation, receivables and payables in foreign currencies which anses from export and import of yoods are hedged through forward exchange

contracts.

Below is currency risk during the year.

C‘l;‘ag::’nnl‘llscD Effect on profit before tax
31-Map-25
EUR +5% 11896
EUR -5% {11896)
usp +5% 382
usD 5% {382)
CNY +5% 1337
CNY -5% -13 37
31-Mar-24
EUR +5% [1.39)
EUR 5% 139
usD +5% (289)
UsD -5% 289

it. [nterest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Mows of a financial nstrument will £l

ii. Price Risk

b of ch

B!

inmarket interest rates The company has

The company 1s mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investment in mutual funds and classified m the balance sheet as fur value through profit and loss. Mutual fund
investments are susceptible to market price risk, mainly arsing from changes in the interest rates or market yrelds which may impact the return and vatue of such
investments. As it 1s the first year of company after incorporatien,there are no investement done by company. Therefore there 1s no price nisk during the year

Note:32 Capital Management

The company mianages its capital to ensure that the company will be able to conlinue 25 going concern while maximizing the retum (o sizkehelders through eptimization
of debt and equity balance. Further its objective 15 to mainmtain an odequate capital basc so as lo mamtain creditor and market confidence and to sustain future

development

The compzny manages capital using geanng vatio, which 15 tolz] debt divided by total equity. The geanng at the end of the reparting penod was as {ollows:

Particulars Asat March 31, 2025 Asal March 31,2024

Borrowings (Non-Current) 17.857.54 13,154 19
|Borrowings (Cusvent) 1,697.73 1,290.78
Graoss Debt 19,555.28 14,44.4.97
Less : Cash & Cash equivalents 867 232
Met Delst () 19,546.61 14,442.75
Total Equity (b} 8,493 84 550833
Debt to Equity Ratia {a/b) 230 2.62

Note: 33 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

As at March 31,2025

As at Mareh 31, 2024

Commitments 1.657.39 590251
Contigent Liabiities -

Parileulors As at March 31, 2025( As at dMaorch 31, 2024/
Demand of Rs 164.21 lacs under section 154 of Income tax Act 1961 for Income 16421 164 21
credited under section 115 JB for MAT Credit -

Guarantees

Particulars

As 0t March 31,2025 |

[Bank Guarantee issued by Bank

8896 |

As at March 31,2024
88.96




CMR Aluminium Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amount in Rugrees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

34. Ratio Analysis and its clements:

Ratio Numerntar Dcnominator 31-Mar-25 | 31-Mar-24 | % change
Current ratio Current Assels Current Liabilities 197 4.10]  -51.87%
Debt- Equity Ratio | Total Debr Shareholders Eqity - Effective portion of 230 262 -1221%
cash flow hedge reserve
Debl Service Coverage  |Eamings for debt service = Net profit after | Debt service = Interest Paymenis + Principal 247 191 29.35%
ratic taxes + Non-cash operating expenses Repayments . ' :
Retumn on Equity ratio | Net Profits after taxcs Averape Shareholder’s Equity 0.43 0.39 9.61%]|
Inveniory Tumover ratio |Cost of goods sold Averape Inventory 15.19 13.46 12.82%
Trade Rccew?blc Net sales = Tatal sales - sales retum Average Trade Reczivable 12.25 15.79]  -22.39%
Tumover Ratie
Trm_:!c Payable Tumover |Net Purchases = Tatal Purchases - purchases Average Trade Payables 29.65 15.51 91.19%
Ralio retum
Nel.Capual Tumover Net sales = Total sales - sates relum \.Voflfu?g capital = Current assets - Curvent 11.00 507 84.32%
Ralio Tiabilities
HNet Profit ratio Net Profit Nei sales = Total sales - sales retum 0.04 0.03 31.08%
Retum on Capital . . Capital Employed = Tanpible Nel Worth + o
z . . 93%
Employed Eamings before iterest and 1axes Total Deb: -Intangbile assets 0.14 013 7.93%)
|Retum en [nvestment Nel Profit Invesiment N/A N/A MiA




CMR Aluminium Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note:35 Disclosures required ws 136{4) of the companics act 2013
1. No loans were given during the year

2. No corporate guarantee was given during the year

3. No investments were made during the year

Note: 36 Employee benelits

Defined Benelit Plans - Genernl Description

Gratuity:

The gratuily plan is govemed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act. employces who have completed five years of service are entitled to
specific benefit, The level of benefit provided depends on the member's lengib of service and salary tetizement age The employce is entitled to a benefit
cquivalent to 15 days salary last dravm for each completed year of service wilh part thereof in excess of six months. The same is payable on termination of
service or retirement or death, whichever is earlier.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is detennincd based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the projected
unit eredit method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise 1o additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures cach unit separately
1o build up the final ebligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated futwre cash Mows. The discount rate used for delermining the
present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government bonds as at the date of actuarial valuation. Actuarial
gains and losses (net of tax) are recopnised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCT).

The following tables summarise (he componcnts of net benefit expense recomised in the statement of profil or loss and amounts recognised in the balance
sheet for the gratuity plan:

" March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Partieulars Gratuity Gratuity
{Unfundcd) {Unfunded)

Change in benefit ebligation
Present valug of obligation as at the beginning of the year 1092 8.17
Acquisition adjustment - -
Current service cost 7.80 30
Add: Past service ¢ost - -
Add: Interest cost a0 0.60
Add: Actuarial (gain) / loss 8.81 .91
Less: Benefits paid (5.41) {0.91)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 22,91 10.92
Liability/ {Asset) recognized in the financial statements 2291 10.92
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cosl 7.80
Interest cost on benefil oblipation 0.79 0.60
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss §.59 4.57
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Intome:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Actugrial chanpes anising from changes in demographic ) ;
assumptions
Acluann.l changes arising from changes in financial ©.97) 0.20
assumplions
Experience adjustments (7.84) (i
Amount of loss recognised in Other Comprehensive @81 ©.51)

Income




The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity liability for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulzrs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 |
Discount rate (%) 6.93 7.23
Expected rate of retum on Plan assets (%)
Future salary increases {%) 8.00 5.50
Retirement Aue (Years) 60 60
Vithd rawal rate
Up to 30 years 3% 0.03
From 31 1o 44 vears 2% 0.02
Above 44 years 1% 1%
Montality table 100% of IALM (2012-14)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for sigaificant assumption Is as shown below:
Gratuity Plan

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2025

Assumptions Discount rate

Future salary

Discount rate 0.5% increase 0.5% Decrease

0.5% increase 0.5% Decrease

hnpact on defined benefit obligation (1en 215 1.4 (.65}
G ratuity Plan

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increase
Discount rate 0,5% increase {.5% Deerease 0.5% increase 0.5% Decrease

(0.84) 0.95
Impact on defined benefit obligation

0.93 (0.84)

The sensitivily analyses above has been detenmined based on the method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a resull of reasonable

changes it key assumplions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals arc not material and henee impact of change not calculated. Sensitivitics as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of
pensions in payments, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Rs. Rs.
Within the next 12 monthis (next annual reporting period} 0.25 0.10
Between 1 and 2 years 032 0.13
Between 2 and 3 years 2.44 0.16
Berween 3 and 4 years 0.36 0.18
Between 4 and 5 years 0.37 0.58
Between 5 and 6 years 0.37 0.19
Beyond 6 years 18.80 9.59

Total expected payments 22.91 10.92

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 21.38 years




CMR Aluminium Private Limited

CIN: U27310HR2020PTCO84758

Noles to financial statcments for the year ended Marceh 31, 2025
(Amount in Rupees lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

Note;37 The Micro and Small Enterprises have been identificd by (he Company from the available infonmation. As per information 10 the extent available with the
Company , there are Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises to whem the Company own dues, as at March 31, 2025, According to such identification, the disclosures in
respect to Micro and Small Enterprise as per MSMED Act, 2006 is as follows:

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each

as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

when the interest dues as above are actually paid 10 the small enterprise for Ihe purpose of disallowance

accounling year:

- Principal amount 14.57
- Enterest thereon Nil
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16, of the Micre, Small and Medium Nil
Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond

the appointed day during each accounling year.

Tlhie amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in miaking payment (which have been paid Nil
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro,

Smazll and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of eacly accounting vear Nil
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date Nil

Note:38 In light of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has spent/provision for Rs, 24

.04 Lakhs on account of Corporate Social Responsibility

{CSR).
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
{a) Gross amount required to be spent 24.04 9.74
(b) Amaunt spent an:
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset 0.68
(i1} On purpose otler than (i} above
fiiyUnspent amotu required to be deposited in separate afc 24.04 2.06
[¢) Detail of related pany transactions out of {b) above:
- CMR Welfare Fosndation 9.06 -
Particulars In Separate CSR Unspent
Ade
Opening Balance .
Amount transferred to scparate CSR Unspent Afc 9.06
Amount spent during the period 9.06
Closing Balance .
Details related to unspent obligations:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unspent angunt 19 be trangferred to a specified fund account 24,04 9.06
24,04 9.06

Note:39 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest INR in lakhs.

Significant Accounting Policies
Sce accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per report of even date attached
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